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DIRECTORS' REPORT
Your Directors submit their report for the year ended 31 December 2012 together with the financial report of Vantage
Goldfields Limited (“the Company” or “Vantage”) and of the Group, being the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial
year to 31 December 2012 and the auditor’s report thereon.
DIRECTORS
The names and details of the Company’s directors in office during the financial year and until the date of this report are as
follows. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated.
Mr Stephen Turner (Non‐Executive Chairman)
Stephen Turner has over 20 years experience in financial markets and for the last 15 years has specialised in the natural
resources sector. Stephen has delivered resource projects in Australia, Southern Africa, Fiji, New Caledonia and the Solomon
Islands. He was the founder of International Ferro Metals Limited and founding director of the Australian subsidiary of PSG
Investment Group (at one time South Africa’s sixth largest investment bank). He has an extensive network of business contacts
and has raised equity capital in Australia, the UK, Hong Kong, Malaysia and the USA. Stephen is an Australian Chartered
Accountant. During the past three years Mr Turner has held and is currently a director of the following listed companies:




Iluka Resources Limited (from 26 March 2010)
South American Ferro Metals Limited (from 11 November 2010)
Timpetra Resources Limited (from 28 May 2010)

Mr Michael (Mike) McChesney (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr McChesney was educated in Johannesburg, where he graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering
from the University of the Witwatersrand in 1973 and a Bachelor of Science in Mining Engineering from the University of
the Witwatersrand in 1975.
Mr McChesney is a registered Professional Engineer with the Engineering Council of South Africa and is a member of the
South African Institute of Mining and Metallurgy. He has over 35 years experience in engineering, mine management and
corporate management.
Mr McChesney has held various senior positions including Chief Executive Officer of several mining companies. His
responsibilities have included mineral exploration, feasibility studies, engineering design, project management, operations
and general management. Recently Mr. McChesney has been involved in establishing and developing a number of gold
mining companies in Southern Africa.
Mike McChesney is the founder of the Eastern Goldfields, Inc Group and has been Chief Executive Officer since October
2005. He has had no other directorships of listed companies in the last three years.
Dr. William Morton (Willo) Stear (Executive Director)
Dr Stear is a graduate of the University of Stellenbosch, the University of the Witwatersrand and the Nelson Mandela
Metropolitan University. His post‐graduate qualifications include a Master of Science degree, cum laude, in Economic
Geology in 1976, a Doctorate (PhD) in Sedimentary Geology in 1980, a Master of Science degree in Mining Engineering in
1986 and a Master of Philosophy degree, cum laude, in Ancient Cultures in 2006.
Dr Stear is a registered Natural Scientist with the South African Council for Natural Scientific Professions, a Fellow of the
Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, a Fellow of the South African Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and a
Fellow of the Geological Society of South Africa. He is an internationally acknowledged “Competent Person” or "Expert".
Dr Stear has nearly 40 years of experience in mineral exploration, mining geology and mineral economics, most of which has
been in a management and advisory capacity. Dr Stear's professional career has included the analysis and planning of gold
mining projects. He has held various senior positions in major mining companies in South Africa, including Exploration
Manager and Consulting Mining Geologist. He also has served on the board of directors of various junior resource companies.
He founded and managed a mineral industry consultancy company which specializes in independent technical and
economic evaluations of mining companies and mineral projects. He has further developed related expertise in resource
investment banking.
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Dr Stear was the Chief Technical Officer and has been a Director of the Eastern Goldfields, Inc Group since October 2005. He
has had no other directorships of listed companies in the last three years.
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Mr Terence Willsteed (Non‐Executive Director)
Terry Willsteed holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Mining) with Honours and is a Fellow of the Australasian Institute of
Mining and Metallurgy. Since 1973 he has been the principal of consulting mining engineers Terence Willsteed &
Associates.
His 40 year career in the mining industry has included senior operational management and engineering positions with Zinc
Corporation, Mt Isa Mines Limited and Consolidated Goldfields Limited. In his consulting experience, Mr Willsteed has been
involved in the assessment and development of a wide range of mineral, coal and oil shale projects, and has participated in
the management of developing and operating mineral projects both in Australia and internationally. During the past three
years Mr Willsteed has held and is currently a director of the following listed companies:







Goldsearch Limited
South American Ferro Metals Limited ( from 11 November 2010)
Niuminco Limited (from 9 May 2011)
Timpetra Resources Limited (from 24 August 2010 to 19 October 2012)
Takoradi Gold Limited (from 25 August 2011)
Citigroup Corporation Limited (from 21 October 2006 to 16 August 2010)

Mr Gilbert Chalk (Non‐Executive Director) appointed 25 May 2011
Gilbert Chalk (British) completed a BSc at Southampton University, an MA in Business at Lancaster University and in 1972
obtained an MBA from Columbia University, New York. He worked in corporate finance at Hill Samuel Bank before joining
Hambros Bank in 1980 as a manager and, subsequently, became a director in their corporate finance department. In 1987
he founded and became managing director of Hambro European Ventures, a buy out and development capital fund
management company, a position he held until 1994. He subsequently became head of corporate finance for ABSA Bank in
London. From 2000 to 2010 he was executive chairman of the Baring English Growth Fund. He is a former Council Member
of the British Venture Capital Association. He currently is Chairman of Castle Private Equity AG and Aurora Russia Limited.
Mr Wayne Kernaghan (Company Secretary)
Wayne Kernaghan is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia with over 25 years experience in
various areas of the mining industry. He is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and a Chartered
Secretary.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity for the Group comprising Vantage Goldfields Limited ( “the Company”) and its controlled entities
(together “the Group”) during the course of the financial period was gold mining and exploration. There was no significant
change in the nature of the Group’s activities during the period.
RESULTS
The profit/(loss) attributable to the Group after income tax for the financial year was $3,840,743 [2011: $10,078,862].
Income tax attributable to this result was a benefit/(expense) of ($575,414)[2011: $10,332,336].
DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors resolved not to declare a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012. No dividend has been
declared or paid by the company since the end of the previous financial year.
OPERATING REVIEW
OVERVIEW
Production from the Group’s two operating mines continued to increase to become a medium sized gold
producer. Total tonnes milled increased to 407,338 (2011: 209,123 tonnes) and gold produced increased to
26,209 ounces (2011: 14,323 ounces) during the year.
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Both mines continued to expand operations during 2012. In the case of the Lily Mine gold bullion was delivered to
Rand Refinery and, in case of the Taylors Mine, gold concentrates were sold in terms of the Off‐take Agreement
until November 2012, when the Off‐take Agreement was terminated. Since then, Taylors’ concentrates have been
processed on site at the CMC by the mine and the resultant bullion sold directly to Rand Refinery.
During the year the company was successful in having all of its “old order” mineral rights converted into “new
order” mineral rights. The company holds “new order” mining rights for its Lily and Barbrook Mines and it holds
“new order” prospecting rights over the remaining mineral tenements in the Barberton goldfield. These rights are
in the process of being registered in the company’s name.
Early in 2012 ASVI Technical Services Group completed a detailed report on the exploration potential of the
Group’s prospecting rights. This report highlighted a number of targets which are in the process of being
investigated in terms of the Group’s exploration programme.
A Bankable Feasibility Study to assess the future potential of the Barbrook Mines Complex was initiated during the
year. This programme involves underground drilling to increase the estimation confidence of existing mineral
resources. A metallurgical testwork programme to investigate the potential of BIOX as a processing option to pre‐
treat the refractory Barbrook ore is also being undertaken. By year end the underground drilling programme was
approximately 40% complete and this programme is expected to fully be completed towards the end of 2013. The
BIOX testwork reported good results indicating metallurgical recoveries in excess of 90% using BIOX and HiTeCC
combined. The implication of this is that overall recoveries of 80% to 85% should be achievable in Stage 2 of the
expansion at Barbrook.
SAFETY AND HEALTH
The Company continued to maintain its fatality free record which has been maintained since inception. The Lost
Time Injury Frequency Rate reduced by 44% to 1.0 per thousand shifts which is considerably lower than the South
African gold mining industry average. Continuous safety and awareness campaigns are being implemented to
improve the health and welfare of the company’s employees.
LILY MINE
Gold production at Lily increased to 21,310 ounces (2011: 12,957 ounces) as a result of the higher mining rate
with tonnes milled of 325,567 tonnes (2011: 184,653 tonnes). Cash operating costs were US$990 per ounce and
the mine produced a cash operating profit of A$11.6 million. Capital expenditure was A$9.8 million.
TAYLORS MINE (BARBROOK STAGE 1)
Gold production at Taylors increased to 4,899 ounces (2011: 1,726 ounces) as this mine continued to expand in this
trail mining stage. Tonnes milled increased to 81,771 tonnes (2011: 24,470 tonnes) but cash operating costs
increased to US$1,025 per ounce as a result of the introduction of underground mine development. After
accounting for the payout factor in the Mine2Market off‐take agreement and after writing off the outstanding
amounts due following termination of the off‐take agreement in November, the mine produced a cash operating
loss of A$1.0 million. Capital expenditure was A$3.8 million.
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
The underground development rate will be doubled at the Lily Mine to provide more mining flexibility and to raise
operational output to full production. The Taylors Mine (Barbrook Stage 1) will continue to produce in 2013 using
direct CIL to process its concentrates. The Barbrook BFS is scheduled for completion at the end of 2013. It is
expected that the results will provide a detailed plan, including various processing options, to expand this operation
to full production over the next few years.
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
In the opinion of the directors there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group that occurred during the
financial year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report or the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST
At the date of this report, the interest of the directors in the shares and options of the Company were:
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2012

Direct

S Turner
M McChesney
W Stear
T Willsteed
G Chalk

Fully Paid Shares
‐
461,692
411,692
‐
‐

Indirect
Options
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Fully Paid Shares
575,000
13,705,554
1,672,578
325,000
200,000

Options
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the period and the
numbers of meetings attended by each director were as follows:
Attendance at meetings up to and including the date of this annual report, namely 31 December 2012, is indicated below:

Number of meetings
Number attended
S Turner
M McChesney
W Stear
T Willsteed
G Chalk

Board
11

Audit Committee
2

Remuneration Committee
4

11
11
11
11
11

2
‐
‐
2
2

4
‐
‐
4
4

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE
Other than those outlined in note 24 to the financial statements, no matters or circumstances have arisen since 31
December 2012 that have significantly affected or may significantly affect:




the Group’s operations in future financial years; or
the result of those operations in future financial years; or
the Group’s state of affairs in future financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS
Further information on likely developments in the operations of the entity and the expected results of operations have not
been included in this report because the Directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the
entity.
ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION
The Group is compliant with all the environmental regulations which apply to it and is not aware of any environmental
matter which would have a materially adverse impact on the overall business of the Group.
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The Company has entered into deeds of indemnity with the Directors and certain key personnel indemnifying them against
certain liabilities and costs to the extent permitted by law.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
In recognising the need for the highest standard of corporate behaviour and accountability, the directors of Vantage
Goldfields Limited support and have adhered to the principles of good corporate governance. The Company’s corporate
governance statement is on pages 18 to 25.
AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE
The directors have received the auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 31 December 2012 which is on
page 17 and forms part of this Directors’ Report.
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The following non‐audit services were provided by the Group’s auditor, KPMG. The directors are satisfied that the provision
of non‐audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations
Act, 2001. The nature and scope of each type of non‐audit service provided means that auditor independence was not
compromised.
KPMG received or are due to receive the following amounts for the provision of non‐audit services:
$
2012
Other assurance services
Taxation services
Total

‐
43,850
43,850
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2011
‐
85,901
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The Directors of Vantage Goldfields Limited present the Remuneration Report for the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2012. This Remuneration Report forms part of the Directors’ Report in accordance with the requirements of
the Corporation Act 2001 and its Regulations.
For the purposes of this report Key Management Personnel of the Group are defined as those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the Company and the Group, directly or
indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the Company.
Table 1‐ The details of the Key Management Personnel are:
Name

Position & Role

Stephen Turner*

Non‐executive Chairman

Michael McChesney

Chief Executive Officer “CEO”

Willo Stear

Executive Director

Terence Willsteed*

Independent Chairman – Remuneration Committee

Gilbert Chalk*

Independent Chairman – Audit Committee

Derrick Short

Chief Financial Officer

Michael Begg

General Manager

*non executive director
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining and reviewing remuneration arrangements for the directors
and executive management. The Committee members who served at any time during the year were as follows:




Terence Willsteed (Chairman)
Stephen Turner
Gilbert Chalk

Attendance at meetings during the year to 31 December 2012:
Terence Willsteed
Stephen Turner
Gilbert Chalk

4 out of 4
4 out of 4
4 out of 4

The Chief Executive Officer attends meetings of the Remuneration Committee at the invitation of the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. In the course of its deliberations, the Committee considered the views of the Chief Executive
Officer on the remuneration and performance of senior executives. No Director is present when his own remuneration is
being discussed.
Remuneration Policy & Principles
The Remuneration Committee will assess the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of officers on a
periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum
shareholder benefit from the retention of a high quality directors and executive management.
Remuneration Structure
In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non‐executive director and executive
remuneration is separate and distinct.
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Objective
To enable the Company to attract and retain the services of suitable individuals to serve as directors, the Board seeks to
remunerate at a level that provides the Company with this objective, while incurring a cost that is acceptable to
shareholders.
Structure
The Constitution and Board Charter specify that the maximum aggregate cash fees of non‐executive directors shall be
approved by shareholders. The current maximum aggregate cash remuneration is $500,000 per annum.
Each non‐executive director receives a base fee per annum with additional fees for Committee activities. Non‐executive
director fees do not vary according to the performance of the Company nor do they receive retirement benefits other than
those required by legislation.
The Board has decided not to make any option grants to non‐executive directors at this time.
The remuneration of non‐executive directors for the year ended 31 December 2012 is detailed in Table 1 of this report.
Executive Remuneration
Objective
The Group aims to reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration that is commensurate with their position and
responsibilities within the Group so as to align the interests of executives with those of shareholders and ensure total
remuneration is competitive by industry standards.
Structure
The remuneration levels for executives are market‐aligned by comparison against equivalent roles in similar operations and
industries. The Remuneration Committee engages external consultants to provide independent advice on salary levels and
incentives for comparable executive positions in similar company structures.
The Group has entered into detailed contracts of employment with Key Management Personnel and standard contracts
with other executives. Details of these contracts are provided below.
Remuneration consists of the following key elements:



Fixed remuneration (base salary, superannuation, consulting fees and non‐monetary benefits);
Variable remuneration, consisting of:
- short term incentive (STI); and
- long term incentive (LTI).

The proportion of fixed remuneration and variable remuneration (potential short term and long term incentives) for each
executive is set out in Table 1.
Fixed Remuneration
Objective
Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee. The last review was performed in July 2012. The
process consists of a review of relevant comparative remuneration externally and internally and, where appropriate,
external advice on policies and practices. As noted above, the Remuneration Committee has access to external advice
independent of management.
Structure
Executives receive their fixed remuneration in cash. Details of the fixed remuneration component of executives are
detailed in Table 1.
Variable Remuneration – Short Term Incentive (STI)
Objective
The objective of the STI is to link the achievements of the Group’s gold production targets and unit cost of production with
the remuneration received by the executives responsible to meet those targets. The total potential STI available is set at a
level so as to provide sufficient incentive to the executives to achieve the gold production targets and at the lowest cost to
the Group that is reasonable in the circumstances.
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Structure
Actual STI payments granted to each executive depends on the extent to which specific targets are met. Provisions are
accrued in the financial period in which the targets are set, with payments delivered as a cash bonus in the following
reporting period. The Management incentive scheme was introduced with effect from 1 July 2010 and payable on a
quarterly basis. The bonus earned for each quarter is split between the executives on a weighting. Bonuses for 2011 and
2012 linked to production and operational targets were paid during the year.
Variable Remuneration – Long Term Incentive (LTI)
Objective
The objective of the LTI plan is to reward executives in a manner that provides incentives aimed at increasing the market
value of the Group and as a retention mechanism. This incentive is separate from the bonus schemes which are related to
short term performances.
Structure
A Phantom Option Scheme was introduced on 1 October 2010 as a long term incentive scheme. Options under this Scheme
are offered to eligible Key Management Personnel subject to the satisfaction of certain vesting and exercise conditions. A
cash amount is determined by reference to the excess of the market price of an ordinary share in the Company over the
exercise price at the time the options are exercised subject to a price cap. The options, in most cases, vest in equal tranches
over three years subject to the recipients continued employment by the Company. The options may also vest immediately.
Vesting and exercise conditions are determined by the Board. Executives are able to exercise the share options for up to
five years from the grant of the options.
Each tranche of these options has a price cap of A$1.00. The options vest in equal tranches over three years. No
supplementary performance conditions have been attached to the vesting of option grants. Refer to Table 2 of this report
for details of the phantom options granted.
For each phantom option issuance, specific terms relating to vesting conditions, term and pricing are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and, if deemed appropriate, approved by the Board.
Equity settled share options have not been granted to directors. There are no outstanding equity options at period end.
Share Trading & Margin Loans by Directors & Executives
Directors and executives are not permitted to hedge their shareholdings or share options except where each of the
following requirements has been satisfied:






permission has been obtained from the Chairman;
the shares have fully vested and are not subject to any hurdles or transfer restriction;
the hedge transaction is treated as a sale or purchase of shares by the director or executive and the relevant
approvals, disclosures (to the ASX, as appropriate) and notifications are made on this basis;
the hedge transaction may not be entered into, renewed, altered or closed out when the director or executive is in
possession of price sensitive information; and
all costs or expenses associated with any hedging arrangement are to the director’s or executive’s own account.

No such requests for hedging shareholdings or share options have been received.
Group Performance & Shareholder Wealth
Below is a table summarising key performance and shareholder wealth statistics for the Group over the past three periods:
Profit/(Loss) After Tax
$

EPS
Cents

Share Price
Cents

31 December 2010

(9,300,295)

(6.4 cents)

$0.27

31 December 2011
31 December 2012

10,078,862
3,840,743

4.6 cents
1.7 cents

$0.18
$0.13

Financial Period
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The following should be read with reference to the “STI” structure, “LTI” structure and tables 1 and 2 (below).
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Mr Stephen Turner Non‐Executive Chairman (appointed 22 October 2009), member of the remuneration and audit committees.
The current service agreement commenced on 1 December 2009. Under the terms of the present contract:

Mr Turner is paid a service fee of $80,000 per annum, an additional fee of $10,000 per annum for all Board
committees and an additional fee of $5,000 for acting as Chairman.

Mr Turner will provide services as a director for four days per month.

Additional consulting work for the Group undertaken by Mr Turner for more than four days in any month is paid at
the rate of $250 per hour.

Mr Turner did not undertake additional work for the Group during the year.

The service agreement may be terminated at any time by Mr Turner giving the Group not less than 12 months’
notice in writing. The Group may terminate the agreement without cause by providing not less than 12 months’
written notice or by making a lump sum payment in lieu of any such period of notice.
Mr Michael McChesney (appointed 22 October 2009)
The current service agreement commenced on 1 January 2010. Under the terms of the present contract:

Mr McChesney is paid an annual salary of $375,000 per annum from 1 January 2012.

Mr McChesney was paid a bonus of $75,300 upon the Group producing in excess of 20,000 ozs of gold in a quarter.

Mr McChesney will be paid a further bonus of $75,300 upon the Group producing in excess of 35,000 ozs of gold in a
quarter.

Mr McChesney was granted with 1,025,000 phantom options during the period ended 31 December 2010.

The service agreement may be terminated at any time by Mr McChesney giving the Group not less than 12 months’
notice in writing. The Group may terminate the agreement without cause by providing not less than 12 months’ written
notice or by making a lump sum payment in lieu of any such period of notice.
Mr Willo Stear (appointed 22 October 2009)
The current service agreement commenced on 1 January 2010. Under the terms of the present contract:

Mr Stear is paid an annual salary of $300,000 per annum from 1 January 2012.

Mr Stear was paid a bonus of $30,300 upon the Group producing in excess of 20,000 ozs of gold in a quarter.

Mr Stear will be paid a further bonus of $30,300 upon the Group producing in excess of 35,000 ozs of gold in a
quarter.

Mr Stear was granted with 1,025,000 phantom options during the period ended 31 December 2010.

The service agreement may be terminated at any time by Mr Stear giving the Group not less than 12 months’ notice
in writing. The Group may terminate the agreement without cause by providing not less than 12 months’ written
notice or by making a lump sum payment in lieu of any such period of notice.
Mr Terence Wilsteed (appointed 22 October 2009), Chairman of the remuneration committee, member of the audit committee.
The current service agreement commenced on 1 December 2009. Under the terms of the present contract:

Mr Willsteed is paid a service fee of $50,000 per annum, an additional fee of $10,000 per annum for all Board
committees and an additional fee of $5,000 for acting as Chairman of such committees.

Mr Willsteed will provide services as a director for two days per month.

Additional consulting work for the Group undertaken by Mr Willsteed for more than two days in any month is paid
at the rate of $250 per hour.

Mr Willsteed did not undertake additional work for the Group during the year.

The service agreement may be terminated at any time by Mr Willsteed giving the Group not less than 6 months’
notice in writing. The Group may terminate the agreement without cause by providing not less than 6 months’
written notice or by making a lump sum payment in lieu of any such period of notice.
Mr Gilbert Chalk (appointed 25 May 2011)
The current service agreement commenced on 25 May 2011. Under the terms of the present contract:

Mr Chalk is paid a service fee of $50,000 per annum, an additional fee of $10,000 per annum for all Board
committees and an additional fee of $5,000 for acting as Chairman of such committees.

Mr Chalk will provide services as a director for two days per month.

Additional consulting work for the Group undertaken by Mr Chalk for more than two days in any month is paid at
the rate of $250 per hour.

Mr Chalk did not undertake additional work for the Group during the year.
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The service agreement may be terminated at any time by Mr Chalk giving the Group not less than 6 months’ notice
in writing. The Group may terminate the agreement without cause by providing not less than 6 months’ written
notice or by making a lump sum payment in lieu of any such period of notice.
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Mr Derrick Short
Under the terms of the present contract:

Mr Short is paid an annual salary of $244,000 and this increased to $289,000 per annum from 1 July 2012.

Mr Short was granted with 750,000 phantom options during the period ended 31 December 2010.

The service agreement may be terminated at any time by Mr Short giving the Group not less than 3 months’ notice
in writing. The Group may terminate the agreement without cause by providing not less than 3 months’ written
notice or by making a lump sum payment in lieu of any such period of notice.
Mr Michael Begg
Under the terms of the present contract:

Mr Begg is paid an annual salary of $248,000 and this increased to $291,000 per annum from 1 July 2012.

Mr Begg was granted with 750,000 phantom options during the period ended 31 December 2010

The service agreement may be terminated at any time by Mr Begg giving the Group not less than 3 months’ notice
in writing. The Group may terminate the agreement without cause by providing not less than 3 months’ written
notice or by making a lump sum payment in lieu of any such period of notice.
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Remuneration and pension entitlements of Key Management Personnel

Leave
accrued

Other
Fees

Termination
Payments

LTI

Total

Incentive
Payments

Fair Value of
Phantom
Options
(cash settled)
Note 28

LTI

Salary &
Fees

Post‐
employment
Superannuation

STI

STI

Fixed

Fixed
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Table 1: Remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2012

%

%

%

Non‐executive directors
Stephen Turner

86,443

‐

‐

‐

8,549

‐

‐

94,992

100

‐

‐

Terence Willsteed

65,040

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

65,040

100

‐

‐

Gilbert Chalk

64,583

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

64,583

100

‐

‐

216,066

‐

‐

‐

8,549

‐

‐

224,615

100

‐

‐

318,592

‐

‐

‐

43,001

112,318

(38,774)

435,137

83

26

(9)

Sub‐total

Executive directors
Michael McChesney
Willo Stear

290,701

‐

‐

‐

‐

48,058

(38,774)

299,985

97

16

(13)

Sub‐total

609,293

‐

‐

‐

43,001

160,376

(77,548)

735,122

89

22

(11)

Derrick Short

235,881

‐

‐

‐

29,946

25,579

(28,372)

263,034

101

10

(11)

Michael Begg

229,510

‐

‐

‐

28,721

38,368

(28,372)

268,227

96

15

(11)

Sub‐total other KMP

465,391

‐

‐

‐

58,667

63,947

(56,744)

531,261

99

12

(11)

Total Remuneration

1,290,750

‐

‐

‐

110,217

224,323

(134,292)

1,490,998

94

15

(9)

Other “KMP”
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Key Management Personnel: Phantom Options
Table 2: The following table sets out the details of phantom options granted and vested during the year for Key Management Personnel
Vested during the
year

Terms and Conditions for each Grant
Fair value per
option
Note 28

Exercise
price per
option

Price
cap per
option

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

Michael McChesney

341,666
341,667
341,667

‐
‐
‐

1/10/10
1/10/10
1/10/10

Willo Stear

341,666
341,667
341,667

‐
‐
‐

1/10/10
1/10/10
1/10/10

2,050,000

‐

Balance at 31
December 2012

Granted no.
of options

Stephen Turner

‐

‐

Terence Willsteed

‐

‐

Gilbert Chalk

‐

Subtotal

31 December 2012

Grant date

First
available
exercise date

Last available
exercise date

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

1.73 cents
1.73 cents
1.73 cents

$0.40
$0.40
$0.40

$1.00
$1.00
$1.00

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

1/10/11
1/10/12
1/10/13

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

‐
341,667
‐

‐
29
‐

1.73 cents
1.73 cents
1.73 cents

$0.40
$0.40
$0.40

$1.00
$1.00
$1.00

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

1/10/11
1/10/12
1/10/13

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

‐
341,667
‐

‐
29
‐

683,334

58

Expiry date

No. of
options

%

Non‐executive directors

Executive directors

Subtotal
Other “KMP”

‐

Derrick Short

250,000
250,000
250,000

‐
‐
‐

1/10/10
1/10/10
1/10/10

1.73 cents
1.73 cents
1.73 cents

$0.40
$0.40
$0.40

$1.00
$1.00
$1.00

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

1/10/11
1/10/12
1/10/13

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

‐
250,000
‐

‐
21
‐

Michael Begg

250,000
250,000
250,000

‐
‐
‐

1/10/10
1/10/10
1/10/10

1.73 cents
1.73 cents
1.73 cents

$0.40
$0.40
$0.40

$1.00
$1.00
$1.00

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

1/10/11
1/10/12
1/10/13

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

‐
250,000
‐

‐
21
‐

Subtotal

1,500,000

‐

500,000

42

Total

3,550,000

‐

1,183,334

100
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Remuneration and pension entitlements of Key Management Personnel

Leave
accrued

Other
Fees

Termination
Payments

LTI

Total

Incentive
Payments

Fair Value of
Phantom
Options
(cash settled)
Note 28

LTI

Salary &
Fees

Post‐
employment
Superannuation

STI

STI

Fixed

Fixed

For personal use only

Table 1: Remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2011

%

%

%

Non‐executive directors
Stephen Turner

86,443

‐

‐

‐

8,549

‐

‐

94,992

100

‐

‐

Hakki Muftizade (resigned
18 May 2011)

59,583

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

59,583

100

‐

‐

Terence Willsteed

65,040

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

65,040

100

‐

‐

Gilbert Chalk
(appointed 25 May 2011)

37,600

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

37,600

100

‐

‐

248,666

‐

‐

‐

8,549

‐

‐

257,215

100

‐

‐

269,859

‐

‐

‐

36,883

16,416

25,557

348,715

88

5

7

Sub‐total

Executive directors
Michael McChesney
Willo Stear

248,430

‐

‐

‐

‐

9,849

25,557

283,836

88

3

9

Sub‐total

518,289

‐

‐

‐

36,883

26,265

51,114

632,551

88

4

8

Derrick Short

208,036

‐

‐

‐

26,712

13,119

18,507

266,374

88

5

7

Michael Begg

185,067

‐

‐

‐

23,016

19,699

18,507

246,289

84

8

8

Sub‐total other KMP

393,103

‐

‐

‐

49,728

32,818

37,014

512,663

87

6

7

Total Remuneration

1,160,058

‐

‐

‐

95,160

59,083

88,128

1,402,429

90

4

6

Other “KMP”
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Key Management Personnel: Phantom Options
Table 2: The following table sets out the details of phantom options granted and vested during the year for Key Management Personnel
Vested during the
year

Terms and Conditions for each Grant
Fair value per
option
Note 28

Exercise
price per
option

Price
cap per
option

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

341,666
341,667
341,667

‐
‐
‐

1/10/10
1/10/10
1/10/10

341,666
341,667
341,667

‐
‐
‐

1/10/10
1/10/10
1/10/10

2,050,000

‐

Derrick Short

250,000
250,000
250,000

‐
‐
‐

1/10/10
1/10/10
1/10/10

8.19 cents
8.19 cents
8.19 cents

$0.40
$0.40
$0.40

$1.00
$1.00
$1.00

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

1/10/11
1/10/12
1/10/13

Michael Begg

250,000
250,000
250,000

‐
‐
‐

1/10/10
1/10/10
1/10/10

8.19 cents
8.19 cents
8.19 cents

$0.40
$0.40
$0.40

$1.00
$1.00
$1.00

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

1/10/11
1/10/12
1/10/13

Balance at 31
December 2011

Granted no.
of options

Stephen Turner
Hakki Muftizade
(resigned 18 May 2011)

‐
‐

‐
‐

Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk
(appointed 25 May 2011)

‐
‐

Subtotal

31 December 2011

Grant date

First
available
exercise date

Last available
exercise date

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

8.19 cents
8.19 cents
8.19 cents

$0.40
$0.40
$0.40

$1.00
$1.00
$1.00

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

1/10/11
1/10/12
1/10/13

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

341,666
‐
‐

29
‐
‐

8.19 cents
8.19 cents
8.19 cents

$0.40
$0.40
$0.40

$1.00
$1.00
$1.00

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

1/10/11
1/10/12
1/10/13

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

341,666
‐
‐

29
‐
‐

683,332

58

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

250,000
‐
‐

21
‐
‐

30/9/15
30/9/15
30/9/15

250,000
‐
‐

21
‐
‐

500,000
1,183,332

42
100

Expiry date

No. of
options

%

Non‐executive directors

Executive directors
Michael McChesney

Willo Stear

Subtotal
Other “KMP”

Subtotal
Total

1,500,000
3,550,000
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31 December 2012
No phantom options were exercised by Key Management Personnel during the financial year ended 31 December 2012.
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31 December 2011
No phantom options were exercised by Key Management Personnel during the financial year ended 31 December 2011.
There were 750,000 phantom options that were forfeited during the year ended 31 December 2011.
Key Management Personnel: Share Options
31 December 2012
No share options or Phantom options were issued during the year ended 31 December 2012.
31 December 2011
No share options or Phantom options were issued during the year ended 31 December 2011.
* End of Remuneration Report *

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

M McChesney
Sydney
1 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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The Group has in place corporate governance practices which are formally embodied in corporate governance policies and
codes adopted by the Board (“Policies”). The aim of the Policies is to ensure that the Group is effectively directed and
managed, risks identified, monitored and assessed, and appropriate disclosures made.
In preparing the Policies, the Directors considered the ASX Corporate Governance Council's Corporate Governance Principles and
Recommendations (“Recommendations”). The Directors incorporated the Recommendations into the Policies to the extent the
Recommendations were appropriate taking into account the Group’s size, board structure, resources, and proposed activities.
The Policies that the Board has adopted are summarised below:
Summary of Board Charter
The role of the Board is to provide oversight for the Company, including its controls and accountability systems. The Board is
responsible for the management and supervision of the Company’s executives and approving management’s development of
corporate strategy and performance objectives. The Board has mechanisms in place, pursuant to the audit committee, to
develop a sound system of risk management and internal control in relation to financial reporting risk and material business
risk.
The Board has delegated to Mike McChesney, the Company’s CEO, the responsibility of day to day management of the
Company. The Board has also delegated responsibilities to Wayne Kernaghan, the Company’s Company Secretary. These
responsibilities include carrying out the administrative and legislative requirements of the Board and ensuring that Board
processes and procedures run efficiently and effectively. The responsibilities of the independent Chairman of the Board, and
each individual Director are also included in the Board Charter.
Additionally, the Board Charter provides details of what factors are considered when determining whether a Director is
independent and what terms will be expressly included in each new Director’s letter of appointment.
Summary of Audit Committee Charter
At the date of this report, the Company’s audit committee consists Mr Chalk (Chair), Mr Turner and Mr Willsteed.
The purpose of the audit committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight policies by
monitoring and reviewing the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls, the independence, objectivity and competency of the Company’s internal and external auditors and the
policies on risk oversight and management.
The committee has the power to gain unrestricted access to management and external auditors and all Company records.
Also meet with the external auditors in the absence of management, at least once a year (but as often as required). The
committee also has the power to conduct any investigation it considers necessary, to seek explanations and additional
information and engage any independent experts it requires to help it fulfil its duties.
Summary of Risk Management Policy
The Audit Committee Charter and Board Charter incorporate the Company’s Risk Management Policy. Under the Audit
Committee Policy, the audit committee carries out the Company’s risk management in its risk management function. The
committee is responsible for providing the Board with advice and recommendations regarding the ongoing development of
risk oversight and management policies that set out the roles and respective accountabilities of the Board, the committee,
management and the internal audit function. The committee is also responsible for providing the Board with advice and
recommendations regarding the establishment and implementation of a risk management system and a risk profile for the
Company. The Board is responsible for reviewing the Company’s risk management system and internal compliance and
control systems.
The audit committee is required to report to the Board, at the first Board meeting subsequent to each committee meeting,
regarding the proceedings, outcomes and recommendations of the meeting. The report is also required to address specific
matters that are detailed in the Audit Committee Charter.
Pursuant to the Board Charter, the CEO and the CFO are responsible for providing written assurances to the Board that in all
material respects:



the financial reports submitted to the Board present a true and fair view of the Company’s financial condition and
operational results; and
the Company’s risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating efficiently and effectively.
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Summary of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The purpose of the nomination and remuneration committee is to provide recommendations and assist the Board with
respect to identifying nominees for directorships and other key executive appointments, the composition of the Board,
ensuring there are effective induction and education procedures for new Board appointees and key executives, ensuring
there are appropriate procedures for reviewing and assessing the performance of each Director, senior managers and the
Board, putting in place remuneration policies which are designed to attract and retain senior managers and Directors with
the appropriate expertise to enhance the growth and performance of the Company and ensure that the level and
compensation of remuneration packages are fair, reasonable and adequate. The nomination and remuneration committee is
responsible for ensuring there is a clear distinction between the structure of non‐executive Directors’ and executive
Directors’ remuneration.
Summary of Continuous Disclosure Policy
The Company has developed a Continuous Disclosure Policy to ensure that it meets its continuous disclosure obligations
under the Listing Rules and to establish procedures so that all employees and consultants of the Company understand their
continuous disclosure obligations. The Company Secretary is the officer who will administer the Company’s Continuous
Disclosure Policy. Under the policy, as soon as employees or consultants are aware of certain information of the type set out
in the policy, the relevant party must disclose certain details in respect of that information to the Company Secretary.
Additionally all media or analyst enquiries and media releases must be approved by or referred through the Company
Secretary. Under the policy the Directors and the Company Secretary is responsible for determining what needs to be
disclosed to the ASX. The policy also contains a non exhaustive list of the type of information that needs to be disclosed
under Listing Rule 3.1.
Summary of Shareholder Communication Policy
The Company is committed to maintaining direct, open and timely communications with Shareholders. The Company’s
Shareholder Communication Policy provides that Shareholders will receive, in a manner permitted by the Corporations Act, a
number of relevant documents, including the Company’s annual report and notice of annual general meetings. To encourage
Shareholder participation at general meetings of the Company, under the Shareholder Communication Policy, the Company
will request that the external auditors attend the Company’s AGM and be available to answer Shareholder questions about
the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the auditor’s report. The Company aims to ensure all
Shareholders are provided with simultaneous access to Company information.
Summary of Policy for Trading in Company Securities
The Board has adopted a policy which prevents employees of the Company from dealing in the Company’s securities when
they are aware of inside information. The policy sets out certain periods during which employees will generally be allowed to
trade in the Company’s securities. Under the policy, permission must be granted by the Chairman or CEO before employees
can deal in the Company’s securities.
Summary of Code of Conduct
The Code of Conduct sets out the standards that the Board and all other employees of the Company are encouraged to strive
towards when dealing with each other, Shareholders, other stakeholders and the wider community. Employees are required
to act with honesty and integrity in all of their dealings with the Company. Additionally, they are required to abide by the law
at all times. The practices that Company’s employees must adopt to avoid unethical practices are outlined in the Code. In
addition, senior executives of the Company must report any payment or gift that is beyond that which is considered “normal
business practice” to the CEO. Senior officers are also required to report and record any behaviour that involves non‐
compliance of the Code.
The Code of Conduct provides that the Company will deal with others in a way that is fair and will not engage in deceptive
practices. The Code also sets out the practices employees should adopt to avoid any conflicts of interest. The Code also notes
the Company’s responsibilities to Shareholders, the financial community and customers and the practices that employees
must adopt to take the Company’s stakeholders’ expectations into account.
The Board sets out below its "if not, why not" report in respect of its compliance with the Recommendations. Where the
Company's corporate governance practices follow a Recommendation, the Board has made appropriate statements reporting
on the adoption of the Recommendation. Where, after due consideration, the Company's corporate governance practices
depart from a Recommendation, the Board has offered full disclosure and the reasons for the adoption of its own practice, in
compliance with the "if not, why not" regime.
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ASX
P & R1

ASX
P & R1

If not,
why not2

Recommendation 1.1



Recommendation 4.2



Recommendation 1.2



Recommendation 4.3



Recommendation 1.3



Recommendation 4.4³

n/a

Recommendation 2.1



Recommendation 5.1



Recommendation 2.2



Recommendation 5.2³

n/a

Recommendation 2.3



Recommendation 6.1



Recommendation 2.4



Recommendation 6.2³

n/a

Recommendation 2.5



Recommendation 7.1



Recommendation 2.6³

n/a

n/a



Recommendation 7.3





Recommendation 7.4³

n/a



Recommendation 3.1
Recommendation 3.2

Recommendation 7.2

Recommendation 8.1



Recommendation 3.4



Recommendation 8.2



Recommendation 3.5



Recommendation 8.3³



Recommendation 4.1



Recommendation 8.4³

n/a

Recommendation 3.3

If not, why
not2

n/a
n/a
n/a

n/a

n/a

1

Indicates where the Company has followed the Recommendations.

2

Indicates where the Company has provided "if not, why not" disclosure.

3

Indicates an information based Recommendation. Information based Recommendations are not adopted or reported
against using "if not, why not" disclosure – information required is either provided or it is not.

PRINCIPLE 1
Recommendation 1.1: Companies should establish the functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to senior
executives and disclose those functions.
Disclosure:
Refer to the section "Summary of Board Charter" above.
PRINCIPLE 1
Recommendation 1.2: Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior executives.
Disclosure:
Refer to the section "Summary of Remuneration Committee” under recommendation 8.
PRINCIPLE 1
Recommendation 1.3: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 1.
Disclosure:
A summary of the Company's Board Charter is included above under the section "Summary of Board Charter" and is publicly
available on the Company's website at www.vantagegoldfields.com.
PRINCIPLE 2
Recommendation 2.1: A majority of the board should be independent Directors.
Disclosure:
The Company has five directors and three of these are non‐executive directors, being Mr Turner, Mr Chalk and Mr Willsteed.
All of these three Directors are considered by the Board to be independent Directors (based on the criteria set out in the
Board Charter. Therefore the majority of directors are independent Directors.
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PRINCIPLE 2
Recommendation 2.2: The Chair should be an independent Director.
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Disclosure:
The Chairman of the Board, Stephen Turner, is an independent Director.
PRINCIPLE 2
Recommendation 2.3: The roles of the Chair and CEO should not be exercised by the same individual.
Disclosure:
The CEO is Michael McChesney who is not Chairman of the Board.
PRINCIPLE 2
Recommendation 2.4: The Board should establish a Nomination Committee.
Notification of departure:
There is no separate Nomination Committee it is carried out under the Remuneration Committee.
Explanation for departure:
Given the current size and composition of the Board, the Board believes that there would be no efficiencies gained by
establishing a separate nomination committee. Accordingly, the Remuneration Committee performs the role of nomination
committee. Items that are usually required to be discussed by a nomination committee are considered when the
Remuneration Committee meets. When the Remuneration Committee convenes it carries out those functions which are
delegated in the Remuneration Committee Charter. The Remuneration Committee deals with any conflicts of interest that
may occur when convening in the capacity of nomination committee by ensuring a Director with conflicting interests is not
party to the relevant discussions.
PRINCIPLE 2
Recommendation 2.5: Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the Board, its committees
and individual Directors.
Disclosure:
Refer to the section "Summary of Nomination and Remuneration Committee" above.
PRINCIPLE 2
Recommendation 2.6: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to Reporting on Principle 2.
Disclosure:
A profile of each Director containing their skills, experience, expertise and term of office is set out in the Directors Report.
The Company’s three non‐executive Directors are independent Directors.
Independence is measured having regard to a list of factors set out in the Board Charter and in addition, a Director’s
independence is also measured against:




whether or not the relevant Director has served on the Board for a period which could, or could reasonably be
perceived to, materially interfere with the Director’s ability to act in the best interest of the Company; and
whether the relevant Director is free from any interest and any business or other relationship which could, or could
reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with the Director’s ability to act in the best interests of the Company.

To facilitate independent judgement in decision‐making, pursuant to the Board Charter, each Director has the right to obtain
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense. However, prior approval from the Chairman of the Board is
required, which may not be unreasonably withheld.
The full Board carries out the role of the nomination committee. To assist the Board to fulfil its function as the nomination
committee, it has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter, which is summarised above in the section
"Summary of Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter" and will also be made publicly available on the Company's
website at www.vantagegoldfields.com.
The explanation for departure set out under Recommendation 2.4 above explains how the functions of the nomination and
remuneration committee are performed.
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In determining candidates for the Board, the nomination and remuneration committee is responsible for identifying specific
individuals for nomination (for directorship and key executive roles) and providing advice and recommendations to the Board
with respect to the appointment and removal of Directors and key executives. Under the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Charter the Board, in its capacity as the nomination and remuneration committee, must ensure that there is a
formal process in place for selecting and appointing new Directors and key executives and that the process is transparent.
The Board is responsible for the ongoing development of a succession plan that is designed to ensure that an appropriate
balance of skills, experience and expertise is maintained by the Board. A Director may not hold office for a continuous period
in excess of 3 years or past the third annual general meeting following the director’s appointment, whichever is the longer,
without submitting for re‐election. Re‐appointment of Directors is not automatic.
PRINCIPLE 3
Recommendation 3.1: Companies should establish a Code of Conduct and disclose the code or a summary of the code as to
the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the company's integrity, the practices necessary to take into account their
legal obligations and the reasonable expectations of their stakeholders and the responsibility and accountability of
individuals for reporting and investigating reports of unethical practices.
Disclosure:
The Company has established a Code of Conduct as to the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Company's
integrity, practices necessary to take into account their legal obligations and the expectations of their stakeholders and
responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports of unethical practices. The Code of
Conduct is summarised above in the section "Summary of Code of Conduct" above.
PRINCIPLE 3
Recommendation 3.2: Companies should establish a policy concerning diversity and disclose the policy or a summary of that
policy. The policy should include requirements for the board to establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity
for the board to assess annually both the objectives and progress in achieving them.
Disclosure:
The Company is in the process of establishing a diversity policy.
PRINCIPLE 3
Recommendation 3.3: Companies should disclose in each annual report the measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity
set by the board in accordance with the diversity policy and progress towards achieving them.
Disclosure:
The Company is in the process of establishing a diversity policy.
PRINCIPLE 3
Recommendation 3.4: Companies should disclose in each annual report the proportion of women employees in the whole
organisation, women in senior executive positions and women on the board.
Disclosure:
As at 31 December 2012, 11% of the workforce is female with no females at board or senior management level.
Recommendation 3.5: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 3.
Disclosure:
A summary of the Company's Code of Conduct and Policy for Trading in Company Securities is included above under the
sections "Summary of Code of Conduct" and "Summary of Policy for Trading in Company Securities" respectively and is
available on the Company's website at www.vantagegoldfields.com.
PRINCIPLE 4
Recommendations 4.1 & 4.2: The Board should establish an Audit Committee and structure it so that it:

consists of non‐executive directors;

consists of a majority of independent directors;

is chaired by an independent chair, who is not chair of the board; and

has at least three members.
Disclosure:
The Company has established an audit committee. The audit committee consists of only non‐executive directors, being Mr
Chalk, Mr Turner and Mr Willsteed. All of these three Directors are considered by the Board to be independent Directors
(based on the criteria set out in the Board Charter). The chair of the committee is Mr Chalk, who is an independent Director
of the Company and accordingly the committee is structured in accordance with Recommendation 4.2.
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PRINCIPLE 4
Recommendation 4.3: The Audit Committee should have a formal charter.
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Disclosure:
The Company has adopted an Audit Committee Charter, which is summarised above in the section titled "Summary of Audit
Committee Charter".
PRINCIPLE 4
Recommendation 4.4: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 4.
Disclosure:
The Board has established a separate audit committee which consists of non‐executive Directors. To assist the audit
committee in its function, it has adopted an Audit Committee Charter which is summarised above in the section titled
"Summary of Audit Committee Charter" and will also be made publicly available on the Company's website at
www.vantagoldfields.com.
Pursuant to the Audit Committee Charter, the audit committee is responsible for selecting and appointing the external
auditor, as well as reviewing the performance of the external audit. The responsibilities, reporting obligations and structure
of the audit committee are all summarised under the section "Summary of Audit Committee Charter" above and is available
on the Company's website at www.vantagegoldfields.com.
PRINCIPLE 5
Recommendation 5.1: Companies should establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with Listing Rule
disclosure requirements and to ensure accountability at a senior executive level for that compliance and disclose those
policies or a summary of those policies.
Disclosure:
The Company has established written policies designed to ensure compliance with Listing Rule disclosure and accountability
at a senior executive level for that compliance. These are summarised under the section "Summary of Continuous Disclosure
Policy" above.
PRINCIPLE 5
Recommendation 5.2: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 5.
Disclosure:
A summary of the Company's policy regarding compliance with Listing Rule disclosure is included above under the section
titled "Summary of Continuous Disclosure Policy" and is available on the Company's website at www.vantagegoldfields.com.
PRINCIPLE 6
Recommendation 6.1: Companies should design a communications policy for promoting effective communication with
shareholders and encouraging their participation at general meetings and disclose their policy or a summary of that policy.
Disclosure:
The Company has designed a communications policy for promoting effective communication with Shareholders and
encouraging Shareholder participation at general meetings. This is summarised under the section "Summary of Shareholder
Communication Policy" above.
PRINCIPLE 6
Recommendation 6.2: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 6.
Disclosure:
A summary of the Company's Shareholder communication strategy is included above in the section "Summary of Shareholder
Communication Policy" and is available on the Company's website at www.vantagegoldfields.com.
PRINCIPLE 7
Recommendation 7.1: Companies should establish policies for the oversight and management of material business risks and
disclose a summary of those policies.
Disclosure:
Pursuant to the Audit Committee Policy, the audit committee is responsible for providing the Board with advice and
recommendations regarding the ongoing development of risk oversight and management policies. Details of the committee
responsibilities in respect of this are summarised under the section "Summary of Risk Management Policy" above. The Board
is responsible for reviewing the Company’s risk management and internal compliance and control systems.
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PRINCIPLE 7
Recommendation 7.2: The Board should require management to design and implement the risk management and internal
control system to manage the Company's material business risks and report to it on whether those risks are being managed
effectively. The Board should disclose that management has reported to it as to the effectiveness of the Company's
management of its material business risks.
Disclosure:
Pursuant to the Audit Committee Charter, the audit committee is responsible for providing the Board with advice and
recommendations regarding the establishment and implementation of a risk management system and a risks profile for the
Company (that describes the material risks the Company faces). The audit committee is also required to report to the Board
in respect of the Company’s management of these material business risks.
PRINCIPLE 7
Recommendation 7.3: The Board should disclose whether it has received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) that the declaration provided in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act
is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in all
material respects in relation to financial reporting risks.
Disclosure:
Pursuant to the Board Charter, it is the responsibility of the CEO and the CFO to provide a declaration to the Board in
accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act and to assure the Board the Company’s risk management and internal
compliance and control system is operating effectively and efficiently in all material respects.
PRINCIPLE 7
Recommendation 7.4: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 7.
Disclosure:
A summary of the Company's Risk Management Policy is included above in the section "Summary of Risk Management
Policy" and is available on the Company's website at www.vantagegoldfields.com.
PRINCIPLE 8
Recommendation 8.1 and 8.2: The Board should establish a Remuneration Committee and structure it so that it:

consists of a majority of independent directors;

it is chaired by an independent chairman; and

has at least three members.
Disclosure:
The Company has a Remuneration Committee. The remuneration committee consists of only non – executive directors being
Mr Willsteed, Mr Turner and Mr Chalk. All of these three Directors are considered by the Board to be independent Directors
(based on the criteria set out in the Board Charter). The chair of remuneration committee is Mr T Willsteed. All three
members of the committee are independent directors.
PRINCIPLE 8
Recommendation 8.3: Companies should clearly distinguish the structure of non‐executive Directors’ remuneration from
that of executive Directors and senior executives.
Disclosure:
The Remuneration Committee is comprised of non‐executive directors only and the members are aware of the difference
between executives and non executive directors with members of the committee not being able to vote on their review of
their own remuneration.
PRINCIPLE 8
Recommendation 8.4:
Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 8.
Disclosure:
To assist the Remuneration Committee to fulfil this function, it has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Charter, which is summarised above in the section "Summary of Nomination and Remuneration Committee" and is available
on the Company's website at www.vantagegoldfields.com.
The explanation for departure set out under Recommendation 8.1 above explains how the functions of the remuneration
committee are performed.
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The Company's Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter includes a statement that any payments of equity
remuneration are made in accordance with the relevant thresholds and limitations imposed by the Listing Rules, the
Corporations Act and related ASX and ASIC policies.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
as at 31 December 2012
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Notes

Gold and silver sales

2012

2011

$

$

40,818,064

21,715,269

Cost of sales

(28,692,700)

(16,268,285)

Gross profit

12,125,364

5,446,984

Other income
Administration expenses
Exploration expenses

17,257

16,929

(3,088,556)

(2,205,054)

(334,304)

(1,248,133)

134,292

(88,128)

(1,027,596)

(889,768)

Share based payments expense
Other operating expenses
Directors emoluments

(462,041)

(83,062)

Training, safety and security costs

Impairment of assets

(1,036,184)

(894,675)

Other

(1,863,311)

(333,899)

4,464,921

(278,805)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Finance income

6

127,475

216,140

Finance costs

7

(176,239)

(190,809)

4,416,157

(253,474)

(575,414)

10,332,336

3,840,743

10,078,862

(3,435,314)

(10,789,064)

405,429

(710,202)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD BEFORE TAX
Income tax (expense)/benefit

8

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Foreign currency translation differences
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic profit per shares (cents per share)

9

1.7

4.6

Diluted profit per share (cents per share)

9

1.7

4.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2012
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Notes

2012

2011

$

$

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

10

2,961,853

4,335,455

Trade and other receivables

11

1,022,425

1,193,022

Inventories

12

2,486,874

1,505,854

6,471,152

7,034,331

Total current assets
Non‐current assets
Loan receivable

13

444

291

Financial asset at fair value

14

74,344

70,863

Deferred tax asset

8

8,220,272

9,336,870

Property plant and equipment

15

53,584,354

44,714,338

Total non‐current assets

61,879,414

54,122,362

Total assets

68,350,566

61,156,693

8,534,915

3,172,008

115,463

‐

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

16

Bank overdraft
Interest bearing liabilities

1,106,048

723,473

Income tax payable

17

170,004

183,211

Total current liabilities

9,926,430

4,078,692

1,176,672

324,374

Non‐current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities

17

Provisions

18

575,641

525,733

1,752,313

850,107

Total Liabilities

11,678,743

4,928,799

Net assets

56,671,823

56,227,894

Total non‐current liabilities

Equity
Share capital

19

60,695,989

60,695,989

Reserves

20

(8,643,476)

(5,246,662)

4,619,310

778,567

56,671,823

56,227,894

Accumulated profit
Total equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Ordinary shares

Redeemable
preference
shares

Share based
payment
reserve

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

Accumulated
profit/(loss)

Total

A$

A$

A$

A$

A$

A$

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Balance as at 1 January 2011

55,256,388

302

6,993,869

(1,451,467)

(9,300,295)

51,498,797

‐

‐

‐

‐

10,078,862

10,078,862

Foreign currency translation

‐

‐

‐

(10,789,064)

‐

(10,789,064)

Total comprehensive income for the period

‐

‐

‐

(10,789,064)

10,078,862

(710,202)

Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for year
Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Redemption of preference shares

‐

(1)

‐

‐

‐

(1)

5,439,300

‐

‐

‐

‐

5,439,300

Total transaction with owners

5,439,300

(1)

‐

‐

‐

5,439,299

Balance at 31 December 2011

60,695,688

301

6,993,869

(12,240,531)

778,567

56,227,894

Issue of ordinary shares (net of costs)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Ordinary shares

Redeemable
preference
shares

Share based
payment
reserve

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

Accumulated
profit

Total

A$

A$

A$

A$

A$

A$

For the year ended 31 December 2012
Balance as at 1 January 2012

60,695,688

301

6,993,869

(12,240,531)

778,567

56,227,894

‐

‐

‐

‐

3,840,743

3,840,743

Foreign currency translation

‐

‐

‐

(3,435,314)

‐

(3,435,314)

Total comprehensive income for the period

‐

‐

‐

(3,435,314)

3,840,743

405,429

‐

‐

38,500

‐

‐

38,500

Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for year
Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Issue of options
Total transaction with owners

‐

‐

38,500

‐

‐

38,500

Balance at 31 December 2012

60,695,688

301

7,032,369

(15,675,845)

4,619,310

56,671,823

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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as at 31 December 2012

Notes

2012

2011

$

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Net cash generated in operations

40,849,223

21,407,583

(29,475,447)

(20,680,052)

11,373,776

727,531

127,475

216,140

1,366

‐

(12,176,842)

(5,785,473)

22

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Finance income received
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Loan advanced

(153)

(9)

(12,048,154)

(5,569,342)

Proceeds from the issue of ordinary shares and options

‐

5,566,500

Payment of share issue costs

‐

(127,200)

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings

115,463

‐

Repayment of borrowings

(428,582)

(1,570,564)

Payments for finance cost

(166,294)

(137,118)

Net cash inflow from financing activities

(479,413)

3,731,618

Decrease in net cash and cash equivalents

(1,153,791)

(1,110,193)

Foreign currency translation

(335,274)

(1,034,251)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

4,335,455

6,479,899

2,846,390

4,335,455

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2012

10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For personal use only

for the period ended 31 December 2012
1.

Reporting entity
Vantage Goldfields Limited ("the Company") is a for‐profit company domiciled in Australia. The consolidated
financial statements of the Company as at and for the period ended 31 December 2012 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group"). The Group is primarily involved in the mining, development
and exploration of mineral properties in South Africa.

2.

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial statements comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 1 March 2013.
Financial position
The accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes continuity of normal business
activities and the realization of assets and liabilities in the normal course of business.
The group has a net asset position of $56,671,823(2011:$56,227,894), net current liabilities of $3,455,278(2011:
net current assets of $2,955,639) and cash and cash equivalents of $2,961,853 (2011:$4,355,455) as at 31
December 2012. Management is confident that the group’s cash flows, which are dependent on achieving its
mining projections, will be sufficient to meet forecast current liabilities as and when due. This will be achieved
through a range of options available to management such as deferring non‐essential operating and or capital
expenditure or through securing additional sources of funding as required.
In consideration of the above, the directors are satisfied that the group will continue as a going concern and that
the financial statements are prepared on that basis.

3.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information has been rounded to the nearest dollar. They are prepared on the historical cost
basis, except where the accounting policies disclosed below require a fair value determination.
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with AASBs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods of the revision affects both current and future periods.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are
described in the following notes:
Note 4(d) – Deferred tax asset (utilisation of unused tax credits)
Note 4(e) ‐ Gold in process
Note 4(g) ‐ Provision for decommissioning and restoration
Note 4(o) ‐ Mineral reserve estimates

4.

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Group for the period presented in this
consolidated financial statements.

4(a)

Basis of consolidation

4(a)(i)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits form its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The
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commences until the date that control ceases.

For personal use only

The Group accounts for the acquisition of subsidiaries at cost less impairment.
4(a)(ii)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra‐group balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra‐group transactions are eliminated
in preparing consolidated financial statements.

4(a)(iii)

Acquisitions from entities under common control
Business combinations arising from transfer of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder
that controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period
presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established. The assets and liabilities acquired are
recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group’s controlling shareholder’s consolidated
financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired entities are added to the same components within
Group equity. Any cash paid for the acquisition is recognised directly in equity.

4(b)

Property, plant and equipment

4(b)(i)

Mine development costs and infrastructure
Mine development costs and infrastructure, comprising mining properties, development costs and mine plant
facilities, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Borrowing costs incurred in respect of assets requiring a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended
future use are capitalised to the date that the assets are substantially completed.
Expenditure incurred to develop new ore bodies, to define mineralisation in existing mineral reserves, to establish
or expand productive capacity, is capitalised until commercial levels of production are achieved, at which time mine
development and infrastructure is available for use and are depreciated as set out below.
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The cost of the day‐to‐day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net
within other income in profit and loss.

4(b)(ii)

Mineral rights
Mineral rights are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

4(b)(iii)

Exploration and evaluation assets
All exploration costs are expensed until directors conclude that a future economic benefit is more likely than not of
being realised. In evaluating if expenditures meet this criterion to be capitalised, the directors utilise several
different sources of information.
Cost on greenfields sites being those where the Group does not have any mineral deposits which are being mined
or developed, are expensed as incurred until the directors are able to demonstrate that future economic benefits
are probable, which generally will be the establishment of proved and probable reserves at this location.
Costs relating to extensions of mineral deposits, which are already being mined or developed, including
expenditure on the definition of mineralisation of such mineral deposits, are capitalised as a mine development
cost.

4(b)(iv)

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets, which is the
costs less the residual value, over their estimated useful lives, using a method that reflects the pattern in which the
asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the entity.
Where significant parts of an item have different useful lives to the item itself, these parts are depreciated
separately over their estimated useful lives.
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Depreciation is determined to give a fair and systematic charge in the profit or loss taking into account the nature
of a particular ore body and the method of mining of that ore body.


Mining assets, including mine development and infrastructure costs, mine plant facilities and evaluation
costs, are depreciated to their estimated residual value over the life of the mine using the units‐of‐
production method, based on estimated proved and probable ore reserves related to the infrastructure.



Where it is anticipated that the life of mine will significantly exceed the proved and probable reserves, the
life of mine is estimated using a methodology that takes account current exploration information to assess
the likely recoverable gold from a particular area. Such estimates are adjusted for the level of confidence in
the assessment and the probability of conversion to reserves. The probability of conversion is based on
historical experience of similar mining and geological conditions.
Proved and probable ore reserves reflect the estimated quantities of economically recoverable reserves,
which can be recovered in future from known mineral deposits.

Other
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Vehicles – 10 years

Furniture and equipment – 3 years
The residual value, estimated useful lives and depreciation method are re‐assessed annually.
4(c)
(i)

Impairment
Financial assets
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default or
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a
security. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value
below its objective evidence of impairment.
The Group considers evidence of impairment for individual assets at both a specific asset and collective level.
Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. All individually significant
assets found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. In assessing collective impairment
the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred,
adjusted for management's judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the
actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.
All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. An
impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between
its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

(ii)

Non‐financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non‐financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash‐generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash‐generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash‐generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and
then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre‐tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
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decreased or no longer exists. A cash‐generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash
flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.
4(d)

Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to goodwill on a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.
A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability
to pay the related dividend is recognised.
4(e)

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Gold on hand represents production on
hand after the smelting process. Gold‐in‐process represents either production in broken ore form or production
in the metallurgical process. Cost includes all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is determined on the following basis:

Gold on hand and gold‐in‐process is valued at the weighted average cost, an appropriate share of
production overheads based on normal operating capacity, at the relevant stage of production.

Consumable stores are valued at the weighted average cost, after appropriate adjustment for redundant
and slow‐moving items.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
cost of completion and selling expenses.

4(f)

Financial instruments
Non‐derivative financial instruments
A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits itself to purchase or sell the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group’s obligations
specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. Financial assets are derecognised if the Group’s
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Group transfers the financial asset to
another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.
Measurement
Non‐derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, non‐
current liabilities, and trade and other payables.
Non‐derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value
through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non‐derivative
financial instruments are measured as described below.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Accounting for finance income and expense is discussed in note 4(i).
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost less
impairment losses, using the effective interest method.

Non‐current liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
raising of the funds, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any
difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income over the period of borrowings.
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
Share capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of ordinary shares and options are recognised as a deduction from
equity, net of any tax effects.
4(g)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, as a result of a
past event for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date. The pre‐tax discount rate used to determine the present value reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of
discount is recognised as a finance expense.
Environmental rehabilitation obligation
Non‐current environmental obligations comprising decommissioning and restoration are based on the Group's
environmental management plans, in compliance with the current environmental and regulatory requirements.
The Group's mining and exploration activities are subject to various laws and regulations governing the protection
of the environment and the Group's environmental management plan. The Group recognises management's
estimate of the value of liabilities for asset rehabilitation obligations in the period in which they are incurred. A
corresponding increase to the carrying amount of the related asset with respect to decommissioning obligations is
recorded and depreciated over the life of the mine. Where a related asset is not easily identifiable with a liability,
the change in estimate over the course of the year is recognised in profit or loss. Actual costs incurred in future
periods could differ materially from the estimates. Additionally, future changes to environmental laws and
regulations could increase the extent of reclamation and remediation work required to be performed by the Group.
Decommissioning provision
The provision for decommissioning represents the estimated cost that will rise from rectifying damage caused
before production commenced.
Decommissioning costs are provided for at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation, using
estimated future cash flows based on current prices. When this provision gives access to future economic benefits, an
asset is recognised and included within mining infrastructure. The unwinding of the decommissioning obligation is
included in profit and loss. The estimated future costs of decommissioning obligations are regularly reviewed and
adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances or changes in law or technology. The estimates are discounted at a pre‐tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account when determining the provision.
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Restoration costs
The provision for restoration represents the cost of restoring the site damage after the commencement of
production. Increases in the provision are charged to profit or loss as a cost of production.
Gross restoration costs are estimated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle obligations, using
estimated future cash flows based on current prices. The estimates are discounted at a pre‐tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Expenditure on ongoing restoration costs is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
4(h)

Revenue
Revenue from the sale of gold and silver are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of value added taxation (VAT) or goods and services tax (GST), returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods. In the case of gold bullion,
this occurs when it is delivered to the relevant refinery. In any other instances timing will be depended on the
terms of the individual contract.

4(i)

Finance income and costs
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and dividend income. Interest income is recognised
as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised on the date that the Group’s right
to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex‐dividend date.
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions and impairment
losses recognised on financial assets. Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

4(j)

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post‐employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in
the period during which services are rendered by employees.
Short‐term employee benefits
Short‐term employee benefits consists of leave pay obligations which are accumulated compensated absences
classified as a vesting benefit whereby employees are entitled to cash payment upon leaving the entity.
The expected cost of the benefit is recognised when the employees render service that increases their entitlement
to future compensated absences. The amount is measured as the additional amount the entity expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

4(k)

Leases
Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair
value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight‐line basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

4(l)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at that date. The foreign
currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency at the
beginning of the period, adjusted for the effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortised cost
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in the foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Non‐monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Non‐monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.
Foreign currency exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in profit or losses.
Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated to Australian dollars at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations, excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies, are translated to Australian dollars at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
The functional currency of the South African operations is the South African Rand.
Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and such differences have been
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve ("FCTR"). When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or
in full, the cumulative balance in the reserve is transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.
When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor
likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary item are
considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive
income, and are presented within equity in the FCTR.
4(m)

Determination of fair values
A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non‐financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or
disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions
made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
Non derivative financial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal
and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. For finance leases the
market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar lease agreements.

4(n)

Comparative information
The comparative period refers to 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011.

4(o)

Mineral resource and reserve estimates
Mineral Resource and Reserves are estimates of the amount of product that can be economically and legally
extracted from the Group's properties. In order to calculate the reserves, estimates and assumptions are required
about a range of geological, technical and economic factors, including but not limited to quantities, grades,
production techniques, recovery rates, productions costs, transport costs, commodity demand, commodity prices
and exchange rates.
Estimating the quantity and grade of the Mineral Reserves requires the size, shape and depth of ore bodies to be
determined by analysing geological data such as the logging and assaying of drill samples. This process may require
complex and difficult geological judgement and calculations to interpret the data. Changes in reported resources
and reserves may affect the Group's financial results and financial position in a number of ways including:




4(p)

Asset carrying values may be impacted due to changes in estimates of future cash flows.
Amortisation charged to the income statement may change where such charges are calculated using the
units of production basis.
Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental provisions may change due to changes in estimated
resources after expectations about the timing or costs of these activities.

Share‐based payment transactions
(i) Equity settled transactions:
The Group provides benefits to employees (including directors) of the Group and other service providers or
strategic equity partners in the form of share‐based payment transactions, whereby employees or other parties
render services or provide goods in exchange for shares or rights over shares (‘equity‐settled transactions’).
The cost of these equity‐settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using an option pricing method.
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The cost of equity‐settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (‘vesting date’).
The cumulative expense recognised for equity‐settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects:
(a)
the extent to which the vesting period has expired; and
(b)
the number of awards that, in the opinion of the directors of the Group, will ultimately vest.
This opinion is formed based on the best available information at balance sheet date. No adjustment is made for
the likelihood of market performance conditions being met as the effect of these conditions is included in the
determination of fair value at grant date.
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional
upon a market condition.
Where the terms of an equity‐settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any increase in the value of the transaction as a
result of the modification, as measured at the date of modification.
Where an equity‐settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new award are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.
Where shares are issued at a discount to fair value either by reference to the current market price or by virtue of
the Group providing financing for the share purchase on favourable terms, the value of the discount is
considered a share based payment.
The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
(ii) Cash settled transactions:
The Group also provides benefits to employees in the form of cash‐settled share‐based payments, whereby
employees render services in exchange for cash, the amounts of which are determined by reference to
movements in the price of the shares of the Company.
The ultimate cost of these cash‐settled transactions will be equal to the actual cash paid to the employees, which
will be the fair value at settlement date less the applicable exercise price.
The cumulative cost is recognised as a liability between grant date and settlement. The periodic determination of
this liability is as follows:
(a) at each reporting date between grant and settlement, the fair value of the award is determined;
(b) during the vesting period, the liability recognised at each reporting date is the fair value of the award at that
date multiplied by the elapsed portion of the vesting period;
(c) from the end of the vesting period until settlement, the liability recognised is the full fair value of the liability
at the reporting date; and
(d) all changes in the liability are recognised in profit or loss for the period.
The fair value of the liability is determined, initially and at each reporting date until it is settled. For the current
financial year an option pricing model was applied, taking into account the terms and conditions on which the
award was granted, and the extent to which employees have rendered service to date.
4(q)

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to exclude
any costs of servicing equity (other than dividends), divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares,
adjusted for any bonus element.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the Company, adjusted for:
 costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends;
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the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been
recognised as expenses; and
 other non‐discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from the
dilution of potential ordinary shares;
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for
any bonus element.

4(r)

5.

Impact of pending accounting standards
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2012, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Other associated personnel expenses

$

$

9,742,979

6,312,820

‐

52,178

Contributions to defined contribution plans

485,465

355,535

Liability for long service leave

186,610

114,553

Cash – settled share based payment transactions

(134,292)

88,128

10,280,762

6,923,214

126,356

211,688

‐

295

Finance income
Interest from cash accounts
South African Revenue Service
Interest on deposits

7.

2011

Personnel expenses
Wages and salaries

6.

2012

1,119

4,157

127,475

216,140

Finance costs
Recognised in profit and loss
Interest on:
‐ bank overdraft
‐ finance lease
‐ trade and other payables
‐ Australian Tax Office
‐ unwinding of discount

39

34

2,342

165,968

134,143

292

414

‐

220

9,945

53,691

176,239

190,809
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8.

2012

2011

$

$

Income tax
Income tax expense
Current tax expense
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense
Total tax (benefit)/expense

‐
575,414
575,414

6,031
(10,338,367)
(10,332,336)

Deferred tax (benefit)/ expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
(Recognition) and utilisation of tax losses
(Recognition) and utilisation of unredeemed capex
Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense

(938,456)
797,614
716,256
575,414

(2,406,424)
(428,767)
(7,503,176)
(10,338,367)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit/(loss) for the year
Total tax (benefit)/expense
Profit/(loss) excluding income tax

3,833,582
575,414
4,408,996

10,078 862
(10,332,336)
(253,474)

1,322,699
(98,673)
572,929
52,251
(514,951)
(1,932,855)
1,162,466
575,414

(76,042)
(6,158)
333,407
22,804
(1,151,584)
(10,353,702)
898,939
(10,332,336)

‐
15,920,313
73,341
95,280
16,088,934

216,865
15,482,075
48,132
86,953
15,834,025

(7,847,845)
(20,817)
‐
(7,868,662)

(6,004,787)
(19,842)
(472,526)
(6,497,155)

8,220,272

9,336,870

Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax
Tax effect for foreign jurisdiction
Non‐deductible expenses
Changes in timing differences
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets
Current year losses for which no deferred asset was recognised
Total deferred tax 9benefit)/expense
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax asset
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Tax losses
Unredeemed capex
Leave pay accrual
Provisions
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Property, plant and equipment
Environmental rehabilitation
Intercompany loan – amortization
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax asset

In 2011 previously unrecognised deferred tax asset arising from the unredeemed capex was recognised as
management considered it probable that future taxable profits would be available against which they can be utilized.
The unredeemed capex relates to Makonjwaan Imperial Mining Company (Pty) Ltd, a Group entity that owns and
operates the Lily mine. Management believe that the DTA is recoverable based on the production levels achieved in
2012 and budgets for 2013 and beyond.
Management has estimated unredeemed unrecognised capital expenditure claims of $46,482,285 (2011:
$41,712,531) which can be offset against future taxable income. Unredeemed unrecognised capital expenditure
claims relate to Barbrook Mines (Pty) Ltd, a Group entity that owns and develops the Barbrook mine. The benefit of
these deductions has not been brought to account as the Barbrook mine is still at a start‐up phase. The benefit will
only be obtained if:
(a) the subsidiary derives future assessable income of a nature and of sufficient amount to enable the benefit to be
realised;
(b) the subsidiary continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by the law; and
(c) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Group entity in realising the benefit.
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Earnings Per Share
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Basic profit per share (cents per share)

1.7

Diluted profit per share (cents per share)

10.

2011
$
4.6

1.7

4.6

Earnings used in calculating basic earnings per share

3,840,743

10,078,862

Earnings used in calculating diluted earnings per share
Weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue in calculation
of basic earnings per share

3,840,743

10,078,862

227,314,532

218,832,183

2,917,627

3,349,190

43,652

966,043

574

222

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Bank balances
Deposit accounts
Bank accounts
Cash on hand

11.

12.

2,961,853

4,335,455

Bank overdrafts used for cash management purposes

(115,463)

‐

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flow

2,846,390

4,335,455

Trade debtors

368,532

382,434

Sundry receivables

363,136

384,960

Indirect tax receivables

290,757

425,628

1,022,425

1,193,022

Trade & Other Receivables

Inventories
Gold on hand ‐ at net realisable value
Gold in process ‐ at net realisable value
Consumable stores ‐ at cost

13.

405,881

248,104

263,963

1,204,669

836,010

2,486,874

1,505,854

444

291

Loan Receivable
Eastern Goldfields Mine Rehabilitation Trust

14.

1,034,101

Financial assets at fair value
Green Horizon Environmental Rehabilitation Fund
Opening balance
Foreign translation currency reserve
Movement for the period

70,863

83,262

(4,257)

(15,357)

7,738

2,958

74,344

70,863

The environmental rehabilitation fund is restricted solely for the rehabilitation and protection of surface land and
water resources disturbed as a result of the mining activity conducted by the Group.
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15.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Total

Group 2012
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Mine
development
&
infrastructure

$

$

Mineral rights
&
rehabilitation
assets
$

Cost
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
impairment

57,716,336

53,404,033

4,312,303

(4,131,982)

(3,630,269)

(501,713)

Net book value

53,584,354

49,773,764

3,810,590

Net carrying amount at the beginning of the period

44,714,338

40,614,386

4,099,952

Additions

13,796,723

13,724,834

71,889

Disposals

(9,976)

(9,976)

‐

Foreign currency translation reserve

(2,607,041)

(2,364,812)

(242,229)

Amortisation charge for the period

(119,022)

‐

(119,022)

Depreciation charge for the period

(1,728,627)

(1,728,627)

‐

Impairment
Net carrying amount at the end of the period

(462,041)

(462,041)

‐

53,584,354

49,773,764

3,810,590

Included in mine development and infrastructure are certain mining assets with a carrying value of $5,693,842
(2011: $3,803,785 purchased under a finance lease (see note 17). During 2012, certain mining and process plant
equipment was identified as no longer meeting the requirements of the operations and upon testing for impairment,
recognised an impairment loss for $462,041.
Group 2011
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
impairment

46,774,302

42,262,408

4,511,894

(2,059,964)

(1,648,022)

(411,942)

Net book value

44,714,338

40,614,386

4,099,952

Net carrying amount at the beginning of the period

48,826,585

43,756,950

5,069,635

5,785,473

5,793,285

(7,812)

Assets acquired with the purchase of EGI (refer Note 26)
Additions
Disposals

‐

‐

‐

(8,909,670)

(7,997,263)

(912,407)

Amortisation charge for the period

(49,463)

‐

(49,463)

Depreciation charge for the period

(855,524)

(855,524)

‐

(83,062)

(83,062)

‐

44,714,338

40,614,386

4,099,952

Foreign currency translation reserve

Impairment
Net carrying amount at the end of the period

16.

Trade & Other Payables
Current

2012
$

2011
$

Trade payables

4,573,732

1,796,280

Accruals and sundry payables

3,419,960

853,663

Share based payment liability (refer Note 28)
Leave pay accrual

42

56,297

197,868

484,926

324,197

8,534,915

3,172,008
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17.

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Secured

2012

2011

$

$
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Interest bearing
Standard Bank Vehicle and Asset Finance

1,654,156

Atlas Copco Customer Finance

1,047,847

628,564

‐

(1,106,048)

(723,473)

Total secured long term liabilities

1,176,672

324,374

Total short term liabilities

1,106,048

723,473

Less: Short term portion classified as current liabilities

Total long term liabilities

1,176,672

324,374

Total liabilities

2,282,720

1,047,847

These financing arrangements bear interest at the South African bank overdraft rate less between 0% and 1.7%
and are repayable in monthly instalments inclusive of interest.

18.

Provisions
Non Current
Provision for decommissioning
Balance at beginning of period
Increase in provision
Decrease in provision
Unwinding of discount

291,355

331,958

37,257

‐

‐

(5,818)

5,277

27,003

Foreign currency translation reserve

(17,503)

(41,787)

Balance at end of the period

316,386

291,355

234,378

282,791

34,632

‐

Provision for restoration
Balance at beginning of period
Increase in provision
Decrease in provision

‐

(1,994)

4,326

21,487

Foreign currency translation reserve

(14,081)

(67,907)

Balance at end of the period

259,255

234,378

575,641

525,733

Unwinding of discount

43

Vantage Goldfields Limited – Financial Statements 2012

19. Share Capital

2012
No

31 Dec 2012
$

Issued Capital
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Movement in Ordinary Shares
Opening balance at 1 January 2012

227,314,532

60,695,688

‐

‐

227,314,532

60,695,688

Issued of during the year
Balance at 31 December 2012
Share issue costs

‐

Balance at 31 December 2012

60,695,688

Redeemable Preference Shares
Movement in redeemable preference shares
301

Opening balance at 1 January 2012
Issued during the year

‐

Redeemed during the year

‐

Balance at 31 December 2012

301

Total Equity

60,695,989

Share Capital
31 December 2011

31 Dec 2011
No.

31 Dec 2011
$

Issued Capital
Movement in Ordinary shares
Opening balance at 1 January 2011
Issued for cash
Issued for cash – Share Purchase Plan
Balance at 31 December 2011
Share issue costs

199,482,032

55,256,388

25,000,000

5,000,000

2,832,500

566,500

227,314,532

60,822,888
(127,200)

Balance at 31 December 2011

60,695,688

Redeemable Preference Shares
Movement in redeemable preference shares
302

Opening balance at 1 January 2011

‐

Issued during the year

(1)

Redeemable during the year

301

Balance at 31 December 2011
Total Equity

60,695,989

Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares entitle their holder to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote, either in
person or by proxy, at a meeting of the company.
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As at 31 December 2012 the Company has issued the following unexpired options issued in the prior reporting period:

Notes

Number

Exercise
price

Expiry
date

(i)

25,000,000

0.40

31 December 2013

(ii)

1,991,138

0.56

27 May 2013

(iii)

2,500,000

0.30

30 September 2014

Total number of Options

29,491,138

(i)

These options were issued under the March 2010 placement. Of the total proceeds of that placement, the
value ascribed to these options was $6,560,000 based on Black Scholes option pricing valuation which has
been recognised in the option reserve.

(ii)

These options were issued as consideration for advisor fees and has been recognised in share issue costs.
The value ascribed to these options was $433,869 based on a Black Scholes option pricing valuation which
has been recognised in the option reserve.

(iii)

These options were issued for the provision of consulting services and has been recognised in profit and
loss. The value ascribed to these options was $38,500 based on a Black Scholes option pricing valuation
which has been recognised in the option reserve.
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20.

Reserves
2012
$

For personal use only

Share based payment reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
Total

2011
$

7,032,369

6,993,869

(15,675,845)

(12,240,531)

(8,643,476)

(5,246,662)

(i) Share based payment reserve
The Share based payment reserve represents the fair value of options issued to third parties
Beginning of financial period

6,993,869

Issue of share options during the year
End of the financial period

6,993,869

38,500

‐

7,032,369

6,993,869

(ii) Foreign currency translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences rising from the translation of foreign operations.
Beginning of financial period

(12,240,531)

Foreign currency translation

(3,435,314)

(10,789,064)

(15,675,845)

(12,240,531)

Within one year

‐

741,613

One year or later and no later than five years

‐

‐

Later than five years

‐

‐

‐

741,613

End of the financial period

21.

(1,451,467)

Commitments & Contingencies
Capital Commitments
Plant and equipment
Contracted but not provided for and payable:

Finance Lease Commitments
Within 1 year

1,237,549

773,142

Between 1 and 5 years

1,246,778

333,562

Greater than 5 years
Total future lease payments

‐

‐

2,484,327

1,106,704

Less: future finance charges

(201,607)

(58,857)

Lease liability

2,282,720

1,047,847

Current lease liability

1,106,048

723,473

Non‐current lease liability

1,176,672

324,374

Lease liability

2,282,720

1,047,847

Represented by:

Contingent Liabilities
The concentrate Off‐Take Agreement between Barbrook Mines (Pty) Limited and Mine2Market was terminated on
1 November 2012. Mine2Market have contended that they have suffered losses as a result of the termination and
are claiming compensatory damages from the Company. This contention is being disputed by the Company and the
Directors are of the view that the Company has not breached the agreement. The Company has not recognised any
liabilities relating to the contract termination as the dispute resolution process is currently ongoing and is yet to be
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finalised. The amount payable, if any, on conclusion of the dispute resolution process cannot currently be reliably
estimated.
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Gold concentrates from Barbrook are now being processed by direct CIL on the mine.
Vantage Goldfields SA (Pty) Ltd, a subsidiary of the company, has provided a surety of $4.1 million in favour of
Standard Bank SA Limited for the banking facilities provided to the Group.
There were no other contingent liabilities outstanding at 31 December 2012.

22.

Reconciliation of Loss Before Income Tax Net of Cash Outflow from Operations

Profit/(loss) for the period before income tax

2012

2011

$

$

4,416,157

(253,474)

Adjusted for:
Amortisation

119,022

49,463

Depreciation

1,728,627

855,524

462,041

83,062

Impairment
Loss on disposal of mining assets
Fair value adjustment
Finance costs

‐
(3,275)

176,239

190,809

Finance income

(127,475)

(216,140)

Share based payment

(134,292)

88,127

Legal and professional

38,500

‐

Bad debt written off

1,258,245

‐

Increase in inventory

(981,020)

(449,256)

(1,087,648)

(58,469)

5,504,478

441,160

11,373,776

727,531

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Net cash used in operations

23.

8,916
(8,014)

Subsidiaries

Ownership
Interest
%

Vantage Goldfields SA (Pty) Ltd ("VGSA")

100

Vantage Goldfields (Pty) Ltd ( i)

74

Makonjwaan Imperial Mining Company (Pty) Ltd(i)

85

Eastern Goldfields Exploration (Pty) Ltd(i)
Centurion Mining Co (Pty) Ltd(i)

74
74

Makonjwaan Properties 28 Henry Nettman (Pty) Ltd(i)

74

Barbrook Mines (Pty) Ltd(i)
Lomshiyo Investments (Pty) Ltd ("Lomshiyo") (ii)

74
‐

(i)

The remaining 26% (15% in the case of Makonjwaan) interest in these subsidiaries is held by Lomshiyo.

(ii)

In accordance with AASB 127 "Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements", Lomshiyo is not recognised as
a minority interest in the consolidated statement of financial position of Vantage as VGSA has effective control
of Lomshiyo. VGSA has effective control of Lomshiyo as its shareholders have pledged all of their Lomshiyo
shares to VGSA as security for the loan to Lomshiyo. Accordingly, the loan to Lomshiyo, is eliminated on
consolidation as an intercompany item and therefore does not appear as an asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position of Vantage.
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24.

Subsequent Events
There has not been any other matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial period that has
significantly affected the operations of the Group, the results of these operations, or the state of affairs of the
Group in future financial periods other than:
 The issue of 3,600,000 unlisted options to senior management with vesting conditions have a total value of
$295,560 which will be recognised in the option reserve. The unlisted options have an exercise price of $0.15
and expiry date of 31 December 2017.
 An item of plant with a net book value of A$509,655 was destroyed by an underground rock fall after year end.
The net proceeds from an insurance claim is expected to be A$571,885. No personnel were injured during the
incident.

25. Operating Segments

Identification of reportable segments
The Group has based its operating segment on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the executive
management team in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources.
The group operates predominately in one operating segment, being the mining and processing of gold ore in South
Africa and sale of gold. There are no material differences between the financial information presented to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker and the financial information presented in this report. Based on this criteria, the Group has
only one operating segment, being gold production, and the segment operations and results are the same as the
Group’s results.

26.

Related Parties
No loans have been granted to key management personnel and their related entities.
The Group entered into a Services and Support Agreement with Cheston Minerals (Pty) Limited a company controlled
by Mr M McChesney to provide office premises and office equipment to the Group at $18,880 per month which is
renewed annually. During the period the Group paid a total of $228,085 (2011: $230,820) to Cheston Minerals (Pty)
Limited. As at 31 December 2012 a balance of $80,478 (2011: $24,592) is owed to Cheston Minerals (Pty) Ltd for these
services.
Refer to audited Remuneration Report for details of remuneration and arrangements with Key Management Personnel.
The Parent company has made loans to its subsidiary companies. Related party transactions exist between the Parent
company and its subsidiaries and these are eliminated on consolidation.

27.

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
(a)

Details of Key Management Personnel ‐ Please refer to page 12 for details of Key Management Personnel.

(b)

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
2012
$

2011
$

1,290,750

1,160,058

Incentive payments

224,323

59,083

Superannuation

110,217

95,160

Phantom option expense

(134,292)

88,128

Total remuneration

1,490,998

1,402,429

Basic salary and fees

48

Vantage Goldfields Limited – Financial Statements 2012

(c)

Option holdings of key management personnel

Non‐executive directors
Stephen Turner
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk

Vested and
exercisable

Total granted

Not exercisable

Balance at 31 December 2012

Balance at end of
period 31 December
2012

Phantom options
exercised

Phantom options
granted

31 December 2012

Balance at beginning
of period
1 January 2012
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

1,025,000
1,025,000

‐
‐

‐
‐

1,025,000
1,025,000

1,025,000
1,025,000

683,333
683,333

341,667
341,667

Other Key Management Personnel
Derrick Short
750,000
Michael Begg
750,000

‐
‐

‐
‐

750,000
750,000

750,000
750,000

500,000
500,000

250,000
250,000

Total

‐

‐

3,550,000

3,550,000

2,366,666

1,183,334

Executive directors
Mike McChesney
Willo Stear

3,550,000

Options Expired

Options sold

Options Purchased

Balance end of
period
31 December 2012

31 December 2012

Granted as
remuneration

The following table details unlisted options held by key management personnel

Balance at
1 January 2012
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The following table details phantom options issued during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Options

Options

Options

Options

Options

Options

Non‐executive directors
Stephen Turner
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

Executive directors
Michael McChesney
Willo Stear

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

Derrick Short
Michael Begg

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

Total

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

Other Key Management Personnel
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Non‐executive directors
Stephen Turner
Hakki Muftizade
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk

Vested and
exercisable

Total granted

Not exercisable

Balance at 31 December 2011

Balance at end of
period 31 December
2011

Phantom options
exercised

Phantom options
granted

31 December 2011

Balance at beginning
of period
1 January 2011
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

1,025,000
1,025,000

‐
‐

‐
‐

1,025,000
1,025,000

1,025,000
1,025,000

341,666
341,666

683,334
683,334

Other Key Management Personnel
Derrick Short
750,000
Michael Begg
750,000

‐
‐

‐
‐

750,000
750,000

750,000
750,000

250,000
250,000

500,000
500,000

Total

‐

‐

3,550,000

3,550,000

1,183,332

2,366,668

Executive directors
Mike McChesney
Willo Stear

3,550,000

Options Expired

Options sold

Options Purchased

Balance end of
period
31 December 2011

31 December 2011

Granted as
remuneration

The following table details unlisted options held by key management personnel

Balance at
1 January 2011
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The following table details phantom options issued during the year ended 31 December 2011.

Options

Options

Options

Options

Options

Options

Non‐executive directors
Stephen Turner
Hakki Muftizade
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk

‐
30,000
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
30,000
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

Executive directors
Michael McChesney
Willo Stear

40,000
30,000

‐
‐

40,000
30,000

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

100,000

‐

100,000

‐

‐

‐

Other Key Management Personnel
Derrick Short
Michael Begg
Total

50

Vantage Goldfields Limited – Financial Statements 2012

Non‐executive directors
Stephen Turner
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk
Executive directors
Michael McChesney
Willo Stear

Granted as
remuneration

On exercise of
options

Shares sold

Shares Purchased

Balance end of
period
31 December 2012

31 December 2012

Balance at
1 January 2012

Shareholdings holdings of key management personnel

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary
Shares

575,000
325,000
200,000

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

575,000
325,000
200,000

14,167,246
2,084,270

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

14,167,246
2,084,270

1,089,508
90,228

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

1,089,508
90,228

18,531,252

‐

‐

‐

‐

18,531,252

Non‐executive directors
Stephen Turner
Hakki Muftizade
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk
Executive directors
Michael McChesney
Willo Stear

Shares Purchased

Balance end of
period
31 December 2011

31 December 2011

Shares sold

Total

On exercise of
options

Derrick Short
Michael Begg

Granted as
remuneration

Other Key Management Personnel

Balance at
1 January 2011

For personal use only

(d)

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary
Shares

500,000
707,795
250,000
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
707,795
‐
‐

75,000
‐
75,000
200,000

575,000
‐
325,000
200,000

14,092,246
2,059,270

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

75,000
25,000

14,167,246
2,084,270

1,089,508
90,228

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

1,089,508
90,228

18,789,047

‐

‐

707,795

450,000

18,531,252

Other Key Management Personnel
Derrick Short
Michael Begg
Total
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28.

Share Based Payments
Phantom Share Option Plan
A Phantom Option Scheme was introduced on 1 October 2010 as a long term incentive scheme. Options under this
Scheme are offered to eligible Key Management Personnel subject to the satisfaction of certain vesting and exercise
conditions. A cash amount is determined by reference to the excess of the market price of an ordinary share in the
Company over the exercise price at the time the options are exercised subject to a price cap. The options issued,
vest in equal tranches over three years subject to the recipients continued employment by the Company and have a
term of five years from date of issue.
Each tranche of these options has a price cap of A$1.00. The options vest in equal tranches over three years. No
supplementary performance conditions have been attached to the vesting of option grants.
As at 31 December 2012 the total number of phantom share options (“Options”) issued was 3,550,000 (2011:
3,550,000), with a fair value liability of $61,415 (2011: $290,745). At 31 December 2012 the total number of options
outstanding was 3,550,000 (2011: 3,550,000) with an amortised liability value of $56,297 (2011: $197,868).
The fair value of the share options granted is estimated as at the date of grant using a Binomial model taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.

Expected volatility (%)
Risk‐free interest rate range (%)
Option exercise price
Expected dividend yield range
Option cap

2012

2011

62.97%

86.21%

2.67%

3.29%

$0.40

$0.40

‐
$1.00

‐
$1.00

The expected volatility reflects assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome. Share price volatility is re‐assessed at each reporting period based on historical
share prices.
The estimated fair value of each phantom option at reporting date is:
Year

Exercise price

Fair value
at reporting date
Tranche 1

Fair value
at reporting date
Tranche 2

Fair value
at reporting date
Tranche 3

2012

$0.40

1.73 cents

1.73 cents

1.73 cents

2011

$0.40

8.19 cents

8.19 cents

8.19 cents

The total number of phantom options issued during the periods is as follows:
Weighted Average
Exercise Price
$

Number of
Options

Phantom options
Opening balance

3,550,000

Granted during the period

‐

Forfeited/Cancelled during the period

‐

Exercised during the period

‐

Expired during the period

‐

Closing balance at 31 December 2012

3,550,000

The weighted average share price for the year ended 31 December 2012 was 16.3 cents.
The weighted average remaining contractual life of the above outstanding options is 2.75 years.
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Equity Settled Options
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During 2012, the Company granted 2,500,000 options to a third party for work performed for the company. These
options vested on issue and have been recognised as an expense.
The fair value of the share options granted is estimated as at the date of grant using a Black and Scholes model taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
2012
Expected volatility (%)

62.40%

Risk‐free interest rate range (%)

2.56%

Option exercise price

$0.30

Expected dividend yield range

‐
$0.0154

Value per option

Equity share options

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$

Number of
Options

Opening balance
Granted during the period

26,991,138

0.41

2,500,000

0.30

Forfeited/Cancelled during the year

‐

‐

Exercised during the year

‐

‐

Expired during the year

‐

‐

29,491,138

0.40

Closing balance at 31 December 2012

29. Financial Instruments
The Group’s overall financial risk management strategy is to seek to manage the Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, commodity price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and share price risk arises in the normal course of
the Group’s business. Derivative financial instruments may be used to hedge exposure to fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, and commodity prices however these have not been used by the Group.
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The following table displays the financial instruments held at the end of the financial period:
Financial Assets and Liabilities by categories

At 31 December 2012

Loans and receivables

Financial assets
carried at amortised
cost

At fair value
through profit &
loss

Financial liabilities
carried at amortised
cost

Total

Recognised Financial Assets
Cash & Cash equivalents (note 10)

‐

2,961,853

‐

‐

2,961,853

1,022,425

‐

‐

‐

1,022,425

‐

‐

74,344

‐

74,344

1,022,425

2,961,853

74,344

‐

4,058,622

Trade and other payables (note 16)

‐

‐

56,297

8,478,618

8,534,915

Bank overdraft

‐

115,463

‐

‐

115,463

Interest bearing liabilities (note 17)

‐

‐

‐

2,282,720

2,282,720

Total recognised financial liabilities

‐

115,463

56,297

10,761,338

10,933,098

Loans and receivables

Financial assets
carried at amortised
cost

‐

4,335,455

‐

‐

4,335,455

1,193,022

‐

‐

‐

1,193,022

Trade and other receivables (note 11)
Other financial assets
Total recognised financial assets
Recognised Financial Liabilities

At 31 December 2011

At fair value
through profit &
loss

Financial liabilities
carried at amortised
cost

Total

Recognised Financial Assets
Cash & Cash equivalents (note 10)
Trade and other receivables (note 11)
Other financial assets

‐

‐

70,863

‐

70,863

1,193,022

4,335,455

70,863

‐

5,599,340

Trade and other payables (note 16)

‐

‐

197,868

2,974,140

3,172,008

Interest bearing liabilities (note 17)

‐

‐

‐

1,047,847

1,047,847

Total recognised financial liabilities

‐

‐

197,868

4,021,987

4,219,855

Total recognised financial assets
Recognised Financial Liabilities
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(i)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of each entity in the Group.

For personal use only

The following tables represent the financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies:
Foreign currency
amount
2012
$

Amount
AUD

2011
$

2012
$

Rate of
exchange
2011
$

2012
$

2011
$

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents

17,695,745

19,843,981

2,013,917

2,402,754

8.79

8.26

8,974,219

9,792,075

1,021,338

1,185,646

8.79

8.26

74,836,571

25,636,976

8,516,999

3,104,182

8.79

8.26

1,014,544

‐

115,463

‐

8.79

‐

20,057,647

8,654,011

2,282,720

1,047,847

8.79

8.26

‐ ZAR

Trade and other receivables
‐ ZAR

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
‐ ZAR
Bank overdraft
‐ ZAR
Interest bearing liabilities
‐ZAR

The following table demonstrates the estimated sensitivity to a 10 basis point increase and decrease in the different
exchange rates the Group is exposed to, with all other variables held constant, on equity through the foreign
currency translation reserve. Profit and loss is not affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
2012
$

2011
$

ZAR/A$ + 10%

(627,211)

(538,576)

ZAR/A$ ‐ 10%

627,211

538,576

Equity Higher/(lower)
Consolidated
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(ii)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rate. The Group is exposed to interest rate movement through variable rate debt and
interest bearing investment of surplus funds (cash). Other than for finance leases and a bank overdraft, the Group has
no undrawn borrowings at period end.
The following table sets out the variable interest bearing and fixed interest bearing financial instruments of the
Group:
Variable
Interest
2012
Financial Assets
Cash equivalents (note 10)
Financial Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities (note 17)
Total
2011
Financial Assets
Cash equivalents (note 10)
Financial Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities (note 17)
Total

Fixed
Interest

2,961,853

‐

2,282,720
679,133

‐
‐

4,335,455

‐

1,047,847
3,287,608

‐
‐

The following table sets out the effect of an interest rise or fall on the profit on the Group:
2012
$

2011
$

Pre Tax Profit Higher/(lower)
Consolidated
Interest rates + 1%

6,791

32,876

Interest rates‐ 1%

(6,791)

(32,876)

(ii)

Commodity price risk exposure
The Group is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in prevailing market commodity prices of gold. The price of gold has
fluctuated widely, particularly in recent years, and is affected by numerous factors beyond the Group’s control
including international, economic and political trends, expectations of inflation, currency exchange fluctuations,
interest rates, global or regional consumptive patterns, speculative activities and increased production due to new
extraction developments and improved extraction and production methods. The effect of these factors on the price
of gold, and therefore the financial performance of the Group cannot accurately be predicted. However, the Group
may enter into contracts to manage its commodity price risk however it has not entered into any contracts to date.

(iii)

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents (note 10) and
trade and other receivables (note 11). The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from potential default of the counter
party, with a maximum exposure equal to its carrying value. Exposure at balance date is addressed in each applicable
note.
The Group does not hold any credit derivatives to offset its credit exposure.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. There has been an impairment of receivables which totalled
$1.2 million.
There is no significant concentration of credit risk other than cash of $947,936 (2011: $1,932,702) held in Australia at
balance date within the Group.
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(iv)

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that there will be inadequate funds available to meet financial commitments as they fall due.
The Group recognises the ongoing requirement to have committed funds in place to cover both existing business cash
flows and reasonable headroom for cyclical debt fluctuations, and capital expenditure programs. The key funding
objective is to ensure the availability of flexible and competitively priced funding from alternative sources to meet the
Group’s current and future requirements. The Group utilises a detailed cash flow model to manage its liquidity risk.
The Group attempts to accurately project the sources and uses of funds.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s contractual cash flow financial liabilities at 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011 based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments
which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.

Liabilities
As at 31 December 2012

On
demand

Less than 3
months

Trade & other payables

8,173,299

‐

‐

‐

‐

8,173,299

Finance Leases

‐

353,513

884,036

1,246,778

‐

2,484,327

Total liabilities

8,173,299

353,513

884,036

1,246,778

‐

10,657,626

Liabilities
As at 31 December 2011

On
demand

Trade & other payables

3,172,008

‐

Finance Leases

‐

‐

773,142

333,562

‐

1,106,704

Total liabilities

3,172,008

‐

773,142

333,562

‐

4,278,712

Less than 3
months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5
years

3 to 12
months

Over
5 years

1 to 5
years
‐

Total

Over
5 years
‐

Total

‐

3,172,008

(v)

Fair Values
The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities, as disclosed in the financial statements, represents their
approximate fair values. No financial assets or financial liabilities are readily traded on organised markets in
standardised form. The Group has no financial assets where carrying amount exceeds fair value at balance date.

(vi)

Capital Management
Management controls the capital of the Group in order to provide the shareholders with adequate returns and ensure
that the group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern.
There are no externally imposed capital requirements.
Management effectively manages the group's capital by assessing the Group's financial risks and adjusting its capital
structure in responses to include the management of debt levels and equity issues.
The Group uses cash flow forecasts to manage and adjust its capital management.
There have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to control the capital of the Group since the prior
year.
Capital managed by the Group consists of shareholders equity.
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30.

Auditor’s Remuneration
2012
$

2011
$
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Amounts received or due and receivable by KPMG Australia for:
(i)

an audit or review of the financial statement of the entity
and any other entity in the Group

(ii)

other services provided to the Group

(iii)

Taxation services

15,000

‐

Total received by KPMG Australia

95,897

69,215

73,658
‐

60,054
‐

80,897

69,215

‐

‐

Amounts received or due and receivable by KPMG South Africa for:
(i)
(ii)

an audit or review of the financial statement of any other
entity in the consolidated group
Other assurance services

(iii)

Taxation services

Total received by KPMG South Africa
Total

31.

28,850

85,901

102,508
198,405

145,955
215,170

Parent Entity Disclosures
As at, and throughout the year ended 31 December 2012 the parent company of the Group was Vantage Goldfields
Limited.
Company
Company
2012
2011
$
$
Current assets

951,223

1,940,077

57,042,793

59,156,937

Current liabilities

(17,919)

(67,825)

Total liabilities

(17,919)

(67,825)

Total assets

Issued capital

60,695,688

60,695,688

Accumulated losses

(2,653,942)

(2,129,295)

Reserves

(1,016,872)

522,711

Total shareholders' equity

57,024,874

59,089,112

Loss for the period
Other comprehensive income

(524,647)
‐

(561,354)
‐

Total comprehensive income for the period

(524,647)

(561,354)

Results of the parent entity

The parent entity has no contingent liabilities, nor does it have any contractual commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant or equipment.
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
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In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Vantage Goldfields Limited, I state that:
In the opinion of the directors of Vantage Goldfields Limited:
(a)

the consolidated financial statements and notes and Remuneration report in the Directors’ report set out on pages 7
to 58 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i)

giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2012 and of its performance for
the year ended on that date; and

(ii)

complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Regulations 2001;

(b)

the consolidated financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 2.

(c)

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable.

(d)

this declaration has been made after receiving the declaration required to be made to the directors in accordance with
section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the year ended 31 December 2012.

On behalf of the Board

M McChesney
Sydney
1 March 2013
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